
For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD relay 
service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400 

 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, November 25, 2014                                                                                             City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – NONE 

PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Vouchers (Hendrickson)  
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 

• Human Services Chair Fran McGregor:  November 13 meeting. 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Steven Pand:  November 19 meeting. 
• Arts Chair Lesli Cohan:  November 13 meeting. 
• Planning Chair Sean Smith:  November 20 meeting; November 6 meeting canceled. 
• Future Meetings:  Economic Development Council:  Next meeting December 4. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Receive Public Testimony Regarding Proposed Fiscal Year 2015 Budget 

1a. Consider Ordinance Setting the 2014 Property Tax Levy for Collection in 2015 
1b. Consider Ordinance Authorizing a Property Tax Increase (Parker/Hendrickson) 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Consider Resolution Increasing Surface Water Management Rates (Vondran) 
3. Approve City Manager Contract (Beaufrere) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
 
ADJOURN 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


Consent Agenda Item C-1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  November 25, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #31736-31799, including ACH Payments and an Electronic 
Funds Transfer and Voided Voucher #31800 in the Amount of $540,060.02, Dated November 
10, 2014 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003069579-1003069597 and Paylocity Payroll Check 
#1003069600-1003069600 inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of 
$158,348.09, Dated November 21, 2014. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers #31736-31799, including ACH 
Payments and an Electronic Funds Transfer and Voided Voucher #31800 
in the Amount of $540,060.02, Dated November 10, 2014 and Paylocity 
Payroll Checks #1003069579-1003069597 and Paylocity Payroll Check 
#1003069600-1003069600 inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $158,348.09, Dated November 21, 2014. 
  
 
 
  
 

 

1 of 35



2 of 35



3 of 35



4 of 35



5 of 35



6 of 35



7 of 35



8 of 35



9 of 35



10 of 35



11 of 35



12 of 35



13 of 35



14 of 35



15 of 35



16 of 35



 Agenda Item 1 
  Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: November 25, 2014 
 

SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE TESTIMONY FROM THE PUBLIC 
REGARDING PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2015 BUDGET [SECOND OF TWO 
PUBLIC HEARINGS]. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Interim City Manager 
 
EXPLANATION:   
This is the second and final public hearing to receive testimony from the public on the 2015 
proposed operating and capital budget and proposed increases in property tax revenues.  This 
hearing is required to be held on or before the first Monday in December (December 1) and may 
be continued from day-to-day, but no later than the 25th day prior to the next fiscal year.  
 
It is the policy of the city to follow applicable laws as they relate to the budget process. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
N/A 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  _____Ordinance  _____Resolution  _____Motion     X     Other 
 

 
 

17 of 35



 
 

  Agenda Item 1a 
  Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: November 25, 2014 
 
 
SUBJECT:  PROPOSED ORDINANCE TO SET THE 2014 PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR 

COLLECTION IN 2015. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Proposed Ordinance 
2. Property Tax Worksheet 

 
EXPLANATION:  
Property taxes for the City of Covington are currently one of three main sources of revenue for 
the city. Property taxes are subject to a variety of legal limitations, including limits on growth 
(the 101%), limits on tax rates, and limits on total rate for overlapping districts. Property taxes 
are the most stable form of taxation – one that is not portable.  
 
Staff has proposed an estimated property tax increase of 0.2%.  The increase will allow for any 
adjustments in revenue resulting from new construction, improvements to property, newly 
constructed wind turbines, any increase in the value of state assessed property, any annexations 
that have occurred, and refunds made that are added to the worksheet by the county after 
adoption of the property tax levy ordinance.   
 
A public hearing required under state law (RCW 84.55.120) to consider the city’s revenue 
sources and potential adjustments to property tax revenues was held on October 28, 2014 and 
November 25, 2014. The deadline for setting 2014 property tax levies for cities in King County 
is November 30, 2014. 
 
It is the policy of the city to follow applicable laws as they relate to the budget process. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:  
This is a significant revenue source for the city. Should the council elect to make any significant 
changes to the levy that has been projected in the preliminary budget and the 6-Year Forecast 
Model, a corresponding change in the budgeted expenditures may need to be made. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
This ordinance sets the 2014 property tax levy for taxes to be collected in 2015. Covington’s 
estimated assessed value (AV) for 2014 is $1,886,750,378 including (estimated) $9,165,280 for 
new construction.  
 
Based on the AV, the estimated total levy is $2,479,652. This includes the beginning levy of 
$2,435,784, plus one percent of the beginning levy equaling $24,358, plus an estimated amount 
for new construction of $14,024, and prior year refunds of $5,486. A final amount to be levied 
for new construction, the state-assessed public utility value, and prior year refunds made will be 
determined by the assessor’s office.  
 

18 of 35



 
 

The estimated dollar increase over the actual 2014 levy amount, excluding new construction, 
annexations, increase in utility value, and prior year refunds, is $47,470, or 2.0%.   
 

2015 expense request amount  $      2,500,000  
Subtract last year's actual levy        (2,475,514) 

 
 $         24,486  

Subtract new construction             (14,024) 
Subtract annexation                        -  
Subtract refunds             (5,486) 
Increase Amount  $           4,976  

  Divide increased amount over last year's actual levy: 
$4,976/$2,475,514 = 0.2% 

  
Because the county does not have the final numbers for items such as new construction, the 
state-assessed public utility value, and refunds made at this time, language is included in the 
ordinance that gives the county permission to make changes based on the final numbers. This 
would result in additional taxes for the city.  Therefore, the amount that will be included in the 
ordinance to cover any additional revenue not included in the preliminary worksheet will be 
$2,500,000.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:        X      Ordinance  _____Resolution  _____Motion          Other 
 

Councilmember ___________________ moves, Councilmember 
_____________________ seconds, to pass an ordinance setting 
the 2014 property tax levy for collection in 2015 at $2,500,000. 

 

19 of 35



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 13-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
ADOPTING THE REGULAR PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR 
2014 FOR COLLECTION IN 2015. 
 

WHEREAS, the city council of the City of Covington has met and considered its budget 
for the calendar year 2015; and 

 
WHEREAS, the city council held a public hearing on November 25, 2014, and heard and 

duly considered relevant evidence and testimony regarding an increase in property tax revenues 
from January 1, 2015, to December 31, 2015; and 

 
WHEREAS, the population of the City of Covington is more than 10,000;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, KING 

COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 Section 1. The city council hereby establishes a regular property tax levy for 2014 
for collection in 2015 in the amount of $2,500,000, which is a 0.2% increase in property tax 
revenue from the previous year, in addition to revenue resulting from new construction, 
improvements to property, newly constructed wind turbines, any increase in the value of state-
assessed property, any annexations that have occurred, and refunds made in order to discharge 
the expected expenses and obligations of the city and in its best interest.  
 

Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days after proper  
posting and publication.  A summary of this ordinance may be published in lieu of publishing the 
ordinance in its entirety. 
 

Section 3.  If any provision of this ordinance, or ordinance modified by it, is  
determined to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this 
ordinance and ordinances and/or resolutions modified by it shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

ADOPTED by the City of Covington City Council at a regular meeting thereof held on 
the 25th day of November 2014. 

   
 Mayor Margaret Harto 

 
ATTESTED:      PUBLISHED:  December 5, 2014 
  EFFECTIVE:  December 10, 2014 
    
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
  
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

ATTACHMENT 1

20 of 35



11/20/2014

2014 Levy Amount= 2,435,784$                                    

x1% 24,358                                           

Increase in utility value -                                                 

Plus: New Construction 14,024                                           

Relevy for prior year refunds 5,486                                             

2014 Property Tax Levy 2,479,652$                                    
Estimated Levy for County purposes 1 2,500,000$                                    

Assessed Valuation 1,886,750,378$                             

2014 Estimated Levy Rate= 1.32503$                                       
(based on the estimated levy of $2,500,000)

Estimated Property Tax
2015

City of Covington

1 The estimated levy amount is based on King County's request that the city estimate above the expected levy to allow for 
additional adjustments that may occur after the city adopts the ordinance. Additional revenue may come from new 
construction, improvements to property, newly constructed wind turbines, any increase in the value of state assessed 
property, any annexations that have occurred, and refunds made. If the levy amount is not requested the city could lose out 
on the additional revenue. 

ATTACHMENT 2

21 of 35



Agenda Item 1b 
  Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: November 25, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: PROPOSED ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A PROPERTY TAX INCREASE IN 

TERMS OF BOTH DOLLARS AND PERCENTAGES AS REQUIRED BY RCW 
84.55.120. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Proposed Ordinance. 
 
EXPLANATION:  
To increase the regular property tax levy to be collected in the 2015 tax year, the city council 
needs to adopt a separate ordinance as required by RCW 84.55.120, which states in part:  

     “No increase in property tax revenue, other than that resulting from the addition of new 
construction, increases in assessed value due to construction of electric generation wind turbine 
facilities classified as personal property, and improvements to property and any increase in the 
value of state-assessed property, may be authorized by a taxing district, other than the state, 
except by adoption of a separate ordinance or resolution, pursuant to notice, specifically 
authorizing the increase in terms of both dollars and percentage. The ordinance or resolution 
may cover a period of up to two years, but the ordinance shall specifically state for each year the 
dollar increase and percentage change in the levy from the previous year.” 

This year the King County Assessor’s Office has asked us to calculate the percent increase 
differently than in previous years.  The calculation is as follows: 
 

2015 expense request amount  $      2,500,000  
Subtract last year's actual levy        (2,475,514) 

 
 $         24,486  

Subtract new construction             (14,024) 
Subtract annexation                        -  
Subtract refunds             (5,486) 
Increase Amount  $           4,976  

  Divide increased amount over last year's actual levy: 
$4,976/$2,475,514 = 0.2% 

  
The attached ordinance meets the requirements of RCW 84.55.120. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
This ordinance states the property tax increase as 0.2%, or $4,976, pursuant to state statute.  
 
 

22 of 35



 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:       X    Ordinance  _____Resolution  _____Motion          Other 
 

Councilmember _____________ moves, and Councilmember 
______________ seconds, to pass an ordinance authorizing a 
property tax increase of two percent (0.2%), or $4,976, 
pursuant to RCW 84.55.120. 
 

 
 

23 of 35



ORDINANCE NO. 14-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
SPECIFICALLY AUTHORIZING A PROPERTY TAX 
INCREASE IN TERMS OF BOTH DOLLARS AND 
PERCENTAGES AS PURSUANT TO RCW 84.55.120. 
 

WHEREAS, the city council of the City of Covington has met and considered its budget 
for the calendar year 2015; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the city’s actual levy amount from the previous year was $2,475,514; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the population of the city is more than 10,000;  
  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, KING 
COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 Section 1. An increase in the regular property tax levy is hereby authorized for the 

levy to be collected in the 2015 tax year. The dollar amount of the increase over the actual levy 
amount from the previous year shall be $4,976, which is a percentage increase of 0.2% from the 
previous year. The increase is in addition to revenue resulting from new construction, 
improvements to property, newly constructed wind turbines, any increase in the value of state 
assessed property, any annexations that have occurred, and refunds made.  
 

 Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days after proper 
posting and publication.  A summary of this ordinance may be published in lieu of publishing the 
ordinance in its entirety. 
 

 Section 3.  If any provision of this ordinance, or ordinance modified by it, is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this 
ordinance and ordinances and/or resolutions modified by it shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

 ADOPTED by the City of Covington City Council at a regular meeting thereof held on 
the 25th day of November, 2014. 

 
   
 Mayor Margaret Harto 

ATTESTED: 
 
  PUBLISHED:  December 5, 2014 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
  EFFECTIVE:  December 10, 2014 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   
 
  
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

ATTACHMENT 1

24 of 35



Agenda Item 2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  November 25, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: CONSIDER RESOLUTION ADOPTING A SURFACE WATER 

MANAGEMENT (SWM) RATE INCREASE AND APPROVAL OF 
INCLUDING PROGRAMMED 2015 CAPITAL NEEDS INTO THE 2015 
BUDGET PROCESS 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Interim City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   

1. SWM Fund Long Range Forecast – 5% Rate Increase 
2. SWM Fund Long Range Forecast – 7% Rate Increase 
3. SWM Capital Needs 
4. Proposed Resolution 

 
PREPARED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
At the October 28, 2014 City Council meeting staff presented the SWM rate study that looked at 
the infrastructure needs of the Surface Water Management program over the next 6 years.  The 
presentation included options for funding infrastructure needs, such as a 5% or 7% annual rate 
increase.  Council requested that staff bring back a resolution, along with long range forecasts, to 
consider the adoption of a 5% or 7% annual rate increase.  Attachments 1 and 2 reflect those 
forecasts, respectively.   
 
In addition to considering a rate increase to help fund the SWM program, staff is requesting 
council approval to include the 2015 programmed capital needs of the SWM program (see 
Attachment 3) into the 2015 budget process.  The 2015 programmed capital needs include 
$52,609 in Facility Rehabilitation, $369,200 in Neighborhood Drainage Improvements, $97,523 
in Neighborhood Ditch Maintenance and $37,080 in Capital Equipment.  If council approves, 
these 2015 programmed capital needs would be included on the changes worksheet included in 
the budget adoption agenda item on December 9th. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The proposed rate increases along with the SWM fund balance will cover the programmed needs 
for the next 6 years.  A 5% annual rate increase will cause the fund balance to drop below the 
20% target in 2019.  A 7% annual rate increase will allow for the programs necessary capital 
needs and keep the fund balance above the 20% target.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance        X      Resolution            Motion             Other  
 

Council member ______________ moves, Council member ______________ 
seconds, to pass a resolution adopting an annual SWM rate increase of 
_______________ to begin in 2015 with the final increase going into effect in 
2020. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  Interim City Manager, Deputy Finance Director, City Attorney 

25 of 35



ATTACHMENT 1

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 2,039$       2,104$       1,772$       1,363$       926$         523$          166$          

REVENUES
  Customer Charges1 1,778$       1,867$       1,960$       2,058$       2,161$      2,269$       2,383$       
  Intergovernmental Revenues 41              52              54              57              60             63              66              
  Grant Revenue 115            221            26              20              20             20              20              
  Misc 5                5                5                5                5               6                6                

TOTAL REVENUES 1,940         2,145         2,046         2,141         2,247        2,358         2,475         
  Transfers In -                 -                 -                 -                 -                -                -                

TOTAL SOURCES 1,940         2,145         2,046         2,141         2,247        2,358         2,475         

EXPENDITURES
   Salaries and Wages 494            561            630            655            681           708            737            
   Personnel Benefits 209            234            251            270            291           312            336            
   Supplies 38              39              41              43              45             47              49              
   Other Services and Charges 885            946            993            1,043         1,095        1,150         1,207         
   Intergovernmental 41              62              65              68              72             75              79              
   Capital Outlay 177            -                 -                 -                 -                -                -                
   Debt Service: Principal -                 -                 -                 -                 -                -                -                
   Debt Service: Interest 30              33              33              2                2               2                2                
   Transfer Out -                 -                 -                 -                 -                -                -                

BASE BUDGET TOTAL 1,875         1,874         2,013         2,081         2,185        2,295         2,410         
  Decision Card -                 46              -                 -                 -                -                -                
  Budget Strategies -                 556            443            497            465           421            346            

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,875         2,476         2,456         2,578         2,649        2,715         2,756         

Operating Surplus/Deficit by Year 65              (332)           (409)           (437)           (403)          (357)          (281)          

ENDING CASH BALANCE 2,104         1,772         1,363         926            523           166            (116)          

20% fund balance target 369$                368$                396$                416$               437$              459$               482$               
Meets 20% Meets 20% Meets 20% Meets 20% Meets 20% Under 20% Under 20%

Margin above the 20% threshold 1,735$             1,404$             967$                510$               86$                (293)$              (597)$              

Notes:

Footnotes: 

CITY OF COVINGTON
SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT FUND LONG RANGE FORECAST

2014-2020 Analysis in 000s
BASE BUDGET WITH 5% ANNUAL SWM RATE INCREASE

1 This reflects 5% annual increase.  

 $(0.5) 

 $-   

 $0.5  

 $1.0  

 $1.5  

 $2.0  

 $2.5  

 $3.0  

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Th
ou

sa
nd

s 

SWM Fund Operations 

Total Revenues 

Total 
Expenditures 
w/Decision Cards 

Ending Fund 
Balance 

26 of 35



ATTACHMENT 2

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 2,039$       2,104$       1,808$       1,474$       1,157$      923$          790$          

REVENUES
  Customer Charges1 1,778$       1,902$       2,036$       2,178$       2,331$      2,494$       2,668$       
  Intergovernmental Revenues 41              52              54              57              60             63              66              
  Grant Revenue 115            221            26              20              20             20              20              
  Misc 5                5                5                5                5               6                6                

TOTAL REVENUES 1,940         2,180         2,121         2,261         2,416        2,582         2,760         
  Transfers In -                 -                 -                 -                 -                -                -                

TOTAL SOURCES 1,940         2,180         2,121         2,261         2,416        2,582         2,760         

EXPENDITURES
   Salaries and Wages 494            561            630            655            681           708            737            
   Personnel Benefits 209            234            251            270            291           312            336            
   Supplies 38              39              41              43              45             47              49              
   Other Services and Charges 885            946            993            1,043         1,095        1,150         1,207         
   Intergovernmental 41              62              65              68              72             75              79              
   Capital Outlay 177            -                 -                 -                 -                -                -                
   Debt Service: Principal -                 -                 -                 -                 -                -                -                
   Debt Service: Interest 30              33              33              2                2               2                2                
   Transfer Out -                 -                 -                 -                 -                -                -                

BASE BUDGET TOTAL 1,875         1,874         2,013         2,081         2,185        2,295         2,410         
  Decision Card -                 46              -                 -                 -                -                -                
  Budget Strategies -                 556            443            497            465           421            346            

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,875         2,476         2,456         2,578         2,649        2,715         2,756         

Operating Surplus/Deficit by Year 65              (296)           (334)           (317)           (233)          (133)          4                

ENDING CASH BALANCE 2,104         1,808         1,474         1,157         923           790            795            

20% fund balance target 369$                368$                396$                416$               437$              459$               482$               
Meets 20% Meets 20% Meets 20% Meets 20% Meets 20% Meets 20% Meets 20%

Margin above the 20% threshold 1,735$             1,440$             1,078$             741$               487$              332$               313$               

Notes:

Footnotes: 

CITY OF COVINGTON
SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT FUND LONG RANGE FORECAST

2014-2020 Analysis in 000s
BASE BUDGET WITH 7% ANNUAL SWM RATE INCREASE

1 This reflects 7% annual increase.

 $-   

 $0.5  

 $1.0  

 $1.5  

 $2.0  

 $2.5  

 $3.0  

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Th
ou

sa
nd

s 

SWM Fund Operations 

Total Revenues 

Total 
Expenditures 
w/Decision Cards 

Ending Fund 
Balance 

27 of 35



SWM Capital Needs ATTACHMENT 3

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Notes
Annual Stormwater Facility Rehab 1027B ($53,000/yr) 
Rehab List Cost 2014$ 1.03 1.06 1.09 1.12 1.15 1.18 3% inflation/year
DP21065 Parke Meadows  $35,385 $36,447
DP11069 Prestige Park II  $23,022 $26,475
DP11068 Prestige Park I $23,022 $26,475
DP41039 Shire Hills $11,351 $13,394
DP41040 Shire Hills $11,241 $13,264
DP41052 Timber Heights $10,989 $12,967
DP41017 Timbercrest Estates $7,351 $7,792
DT11045 Pioneer Ridge Swale  $52,416 $57,133
DP41008 Covington Park Div.1 (Dog Park) $45,926 $51,437
DP21055 Foxwood $13,192 $13,588
DP21088 North Park $40,569 $43,003
Facility Fence Repair $2,500 $2,575 $2,650 $2,725 $2,800 $2,875 $2,950
Annual Stormwater Facility Rehab $318,551 $52,609 $53,445 $59,858 $54,237 $55,826 $42,576

Annual Neighborhood Drainage Improvements 1027A
CIP List Cost 2014$ 1.03 1.06 1.09 1.12 1.15 1.18 3% inflation/year
Crystal View Outfall Retrofits $146,954 $164,588
Lillian's First Addition Outfall Retrofits $191,751 $220,514
The Reserve Capacity Improvement/Outfall Study $30,000 $32,700
Clements Capacity Project/ 263rd Drainage Improvments $240,000 $247,200
Timberlane/Jenkins Creek Park Stormwater LID $319,148 $122,000 $257,950 $257,950
Park Meadows Outfall $54,560 $64,381
Channing Park Swale Rehab $51,345 $60,587
212th AVE SE Outfall Retrofit $88,252 $98,842
DP21060 Woodcreek Inlet Retrofit $8,303 $9,798
DP41150 Timberlane Inlet Structure Rehab $6,656 $7,854
Annual Neighborhood Drainage $1,544,364 $369,200 $257,950 $290,650 $263,431 $220,514 $142,620

Annual Ditch Maintenance - ditching, culvert cleaning and shoulder grading
Location List Cost 2014$ 1.03 1.06 1.09 1.12 1.15 1.18 3% inflation/year
Aqua Vista $78,276.00 $82,973
Kamloch $33,715.00 $34,726
Timberlane $105,468.00 $57,480 $59,062
The Lakes at Winterwood $74,693.00 $41,828 $42,948
Shilo Woods $33,302.00 $39,296
156th Ave SE (272nd to N/O 256th) $27,325.00 $28,145
153rd Ave SE (N/O 256th) $34,706.00 $39,912
183rd Ave SE (S/O 240th) $21,450.00 $22,094
Victoria Glenn $27,277.00 $32,187
SE 262nd Place (E/O 180th Ave SE) $12,929.00 $14,480
Suncrest $24,620.00 $28,313
SE 272nd Street (185th to ECL) $46,250.00 $54,575
SE 262nd Place (E/O 156th) $8,194.00 $8,931
Fir Manor $12,193.00 $12,559
180th Ave SE (N/O 256th) $20,824.00 $22,073
SE 240th Street $30,892.00 $33,672
Annual Ditch Maintenance $655,256 $97,523 $105,046 $100,084 $115,371 $111,173 $126,058
Annual Catch Basin Cleaning - NPDES Requirement 
(increase beginning in 2017) $129,304 $30,000 $31,500 $33,075 $34,729 5% inflation/year

Capital Equipment
1.03 1.06 1.09 1.12 1.15 1.18 3% inflation/year

Mower attachment for Excavator $36,000 $37,080
Kut Kwick (to Replace DeWeze in 2017) $25,000 $26,500
HazMat Storage shed $15,000 $16,350
Slope Mower $90,000
Sweeper $300,000
        Sweeper Maintenance (Annual Ongoing) $10,000
Maintenance Yard Property (SWM Portion) $300,000
Capital Equipment $0

$37,080 $26,500 $16,350 $0 $0 $0
Annual Programmed Expenditures $556,413 $442,941 $496,942 $464,538 $420,588 $345,982

Total Programmed Expenditures $2,727,404

Unprogrammed Future Needs

Inflation Factor

Inflation Factor

Inflation Factor

Inflation Factor

28 of 35



  ATTACHMENT 4 

RESOLUTION NO.  ______ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
ADOPTING A NEW SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT 
FEE SCHEDULE; AND REPEALING RESOLUTION NO. 
10-24 

 
 WHEREAS, certain sections of the Covington Municipal Code authorize the City to 

charge a fee for services, and 

 WHEREAS, each year the city analyzes the surface water management rate model to 

ensure revenues keep pace with expenses and the council desires to modify the fee resolution to 

adopt new Surface Water Management Rates for 2015, and 

 WHEREAS, the council desires to increase the Surface Water Management Rates by 

__% as determined in the six year plan in order to address SWM capital needs and NPDES 

requirements; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 

WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 Section 1.  Adoption of Fees.  Effective January 1, 2015, the city’s storm and surface 

water maintenance fees are hereby adopted in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit “A” which 

shall supersede any previously adopted storm and surface water maintenance fee schedule. 

 Section 2.  Fee Waiver.  The City Manager shall have the right to waive all or part of a 

storm and surface water maintenance fee if deemed in the best interest of the city. 

 Section 3.  Repealer.  Resolution No. 10-24 is hereby repealed. 

  

29 of 35



 

 PASSED in open and regular session on this 25th day of November, 2014. 

 
       __________________________ 
       Mayor Margaret Harto 
Attested: 
 
___________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

30 of 35



EXHIBIT A

2011 Current Baseline

 $    175.66 parcel/yr
 $    175.66 parcel/yr
 $    433.54 acre/yr
 $    920.64 acre/yr
 $ 1,552.27 acre/yr
 $ 2,139.04 acre/yr
 $ 2,698.40 acre/yr

NA
NA

2015 5% Rate Increase

 $    184.44 parcel/yr
 $    184.44 parcel/yr
 $    455.22 acre/yr
 $    966.67 acre/yr
 $ 1,629.88 acre/yr
 $ 2,245.99 acre/yr
 $ 2,833.32 acre/yr

NA
NA

2015 7% Rate Increase

 $    187.96 parcel/yr
 $    187.96 parcel/yr
 $    463.89 acre/yr
 $    985.08 acre/yr
 $ 1,660.93 acre/yr
 $ 2,288.77 acre/yr
 $ 2,887.29 acre/yr

NA
NA

Storm and Surface Water Maintenance, Operations and CIP 

Land use Impervious Surface %
Residential NA

Moderate >20% to 45%
Moderately Heavy >45% to 65%

Very Light 0 to 10%
Light >10% to 20%

Heavy >65% to 85%

State Highways NA
Note: parcel/yr = fee amount per parcel, per year.  Acre/yr = fee 

Very Heavy >85% to 100%
City Roads NA

Storm and Surface Water Maintenance, Operations and CIP 

Land use Impervious Surface %
Residential NA
Very Light 0 to 10%
Light >10% to 20%
Moderate >20% to 45%
Moderately Heavy >45% to 65%
Heavy >65% to 85%
Very Heavy >85% to 100%
City Roads NA
State Highways NA
Note: parcel/yr = fee amount per parcel, per year.  Acre/yr = fee 

Storm and Surface Water Maintenance, Operations and CIP 

Land use Impervious Surface %
Residential NA
Very Light 0 to 10%
Light >10% to 20%
Moderate >20% to 45%
Moderately Heavy >45% to 65%
Heavy >65% to 85%
Very Heavy >85% to 100%
City Roads NA
State Highways NA
Note: parcel/yr = fee amount per parcel, per year.  Acre/yr = fee 

31 of 35



Agenda Item 3    
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: November 25, 2014   
 
SUBJECT:   PROPOSED RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A 

CONTRACT FOR CITY MANAGER SERVICES AND DELEGATING 
ADMINISTRATIVE POWERS AND DUTIES TO THE MANAGER.  

 
RECOMMENDED BY: City Council 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1) Proposed Resolution. 
2) Proposed Agreement. [To be presented at the meeting] 

 
PREPARED BY:  Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel Manager 
 
EXPLANATION:  
The City’s regular City Manager, Derek Matheson, resigned from his position effective August 
8, 2014.  The City Council approved filling the vacancy with Finance Director Rob Hendrickson 
to serve as the Interim City Manager effective as of that same date until an executive search 
resulted in the appointment of a new City Manager by the City Council.  In August, 2014, the 
City Council selected The Prothman Company to conduct the executive search to fill the 
position.   
 
As a result of the search conducted by The Prothman Company, the City Council interviewed 
four (4) finalist candidates in Executive Session at the November 18, 2014 Council Meeting.  
Subsequent to those interviews the council unanimously selected Regan Bolli as the final 
candidate the council desired to offer the position of City Manager. The City Council authorized 
the Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem and Personnel Manager to enter into negotiations with Regan Bolli. 
 
Exhibit 1 to this Agenda Item is the proposed Resolution Approving the City Manager 
Employment Agreement establishing a contractual relationship with Regan Bolli. 
 
The proposed Employment Agreement was still being negotiated at the time the council packet 
was prepared, therefore the final proposed agreement will be provided to council at the council 
meeting.  Should the Mayor, Mayor Pro Tem and Personnel Manager not reach agreement on the 
terms of the Employment Agreement prior to the council meeting; staff will recommend to 
remove this item from the agenda. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Budgeted Item 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance        X      Resolution            Motion               Other  
 

Council member ___________ moves, Council member __________________ 
seconds, to pass a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the Proposed 
Contract for City Manager and Delegating Administrative Powers and 
Duties to the City Manager. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney 

32 of 35



 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-19 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO 
EXECUTE A CONTRACT FOR CITY MANAGER AND DELEGATING 
ADMINISTRATIVE POWERS AND DUTIES TO THE CITY MANAGER.    

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Covington has been duly elected and is 

authorized to enter into contracts pursuant to RCW 35A.13.230; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to hire the services of a City Manager to serve as 

the executive administrator of the city; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has selected Regan Bolli to serve as the city’s City 

Manager; now, therefore,  

 BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Covington, King County, 
Washington, as follows: 
 Section 1.  Appointment of City Manager.  After due consideration, the City Council 

hereby appoints Regan Bolli as City Manager for the City of Covington and the Mayor is hereby 

authorized to execute the contract for services ATTACHED HERETO AS Exhibit “A”.  

Pursuant to RCW 35A.13.230, this appointment shall be effective on the ______ day of 

____________________, 2015. 

 Section 2.  Delegation of Administrative Powers and Duties.  The City Council hereby 

delegates to the City Manager all such administrative powers and duties as are applicable to a 

City Manager pursuant to RCW 35A.13.080. 

 PASSED in open and regular session on this 25th day of November, 2014. 

 

       _____________________________ 
       MAYOR MARGARET HARTO 
ATTESTED: 
 
___________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
__________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

ATTACHMENT 1

33 of 35



  
Covington City Council Meeting 
           Date:  November 25, 2014 

 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

7:00 p.m. Tuesday, December 9, 2014 Regular Meeting 
 
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

34 of 35



For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD relay 
service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400. 
 

 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, December 9, 2014                                                                                                City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 

PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  November 18, 2014, 11:15 a.m. Special Meeting; November 18, 2014; 7:00 p.m. Special 

Meeting; and November 25, 2014 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Approve Mountain Meadows Final Plat (Hart) 
C-4. Approve Abaco Pacific Agreement for Real Estate Services (Vondran) 
C-5. Approve Wilson Fleet Services Agreement (Vondran) 
C-6. Approve Recycling Events for 2015 Agreement (Vondran) 
C-7. Pass Ordinance Adopting a 2014 Budget Amendment (Hendrickson) 
C-8. Approve CEMP Update Consultant Agreement (Vondran) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Receive Testimony from the Public and Adopt an Ordinance Regarding Kent School District’s Six Year 

Capital Facilities Plan and School Impact Fees (Hart) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Discuss Parks Impact Fees (Feser) 
3. Consider Ordinance Adopting the CY2015 Operating and Capital Budget (Hendrickson) 
4. Consider Interlocal Agreement with the Cities of Black Diamond and Maple Valley (Hart) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 

PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 

ADJOURN 

Draft 
as of 11/20/14 

 

35 of 35

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�

	11-25-2014 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, November 25, 2014                                                                                             City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – NONE

	Consent C-1 Green Sheet 11-29-2014 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent C-1 Attachment
	Consent C-1 Attachment 2
	Item 1 Blue Sheet 11-25-14 Blue Sheet for Public Hearing
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 1a Blue Sheet 11-25-14 Agenda Item 1a
	Item 1a Attachment 1 11-25-14 Attachment 1 for Agenda Item 1a
	Item 1a Attachment 2 11-25-14 Attachment 2 for Agenda Item 1a
	Sheet1

	Item 1b Blue Sheet 11-25-2014 Agenda Item 1b
	Item 1b Attachment 1 11-25-2014 Attachment 1 for Agenda Item 1b
	Item 2 Blue Sheet 11-25-14 SWM Rate Increase Blue Sheet
	Agenda Item 2

	Item 2 Attachments 11-25-14 SWM Rate Increase Attachment 1 - 4
	SWM 5%
	Attachment 2.pdf
	SWM 7%

	Attachment 3.pdf
	Capital Needs

	Exhibit A.pdf
	Projected Rates


	Item 3 Blue Sheet 11-25-14 City Manager Contract Blue Sheet
	Agenda Item 3

	Item 3 Attachment 1 11-25-14 City Manager Contract Resolution
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	12-09-2014 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, December 9, 2014                                                                                                City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA




